
1

Oak Bluffs Community Preservation Committee
P.O. Box 1327

                   Oak Bluffs, MA 02557

Joan Hughes, Chairman
Jevon Rego, Vice Chairman

Amy Billings
Jim Bishop

Stephen Durkee
Bo Fehl

Charles Rock
Alison Shaw

James Westervelt
Margaret Knight, Admin. Assis’t

Oak Bluffs Community Preservation Committee Minutes
March 21, 2016, 7:00 p.m. Public Information and Input Session; and regular meeting
Present: Joan Hughes, chair, Jevon Rego, vice-chair(for first ten minutes), Amy Billings, 
Steve Durkee, Alison Shaw, Jim Bishop, Bo Fehl, James Westervelt
Also Present: Margaret Knight, CPC admin. assistant, Margo Urbany-Jones & Greg Orcutt 
from Habitat for Humanity MV

The meeting was opened at 7:00 p.m.

Public Input and Information meeting:
No one attended the advertised public session, so the CPC went on to the rest of 

their meeting agenda.

Minutes:
The minutes from the CPC meeting on February 22, 2016 were approved with a 

correction; unanimous except Bo abstained.

Town Counsel email:
In reference to an email sent by Michael Goldsmith to Margaret on 3/11/16 

questioning the CPC’s recommendations of studies, in general, and particularly for this 
year’s Coastal Ecosystem Service Evaluation project, Jevon said he’s not definitely for or 
against support for the project, but had started questioning whether it qualifies. He said 
support for studies is supposed to be for projects that qualify for CPC money later, and 
there is no specific project planned for this study. Alison said she would like to see that 
kept in mind while first discussing a project, but that she wouldn’t change her vote on the 
Service Evaluation project. Amy said a study might become useful toward supporting a 
future project. Joan said the state has made it more complicated to apply for money, but 
that there is more money to apply for and studies should help the town get money. Bo 
supported funding this project. Jevon mentioned the issue of the CPC paying for a law suit 
when it should be the town paying for it.



2

Habitat for Humanity project:
Greg Orcutt, Habitat board member, and Margo Urbany-Joyce, executive director, 

were present to talk about the CPA-funded project for an affordable house on 
Towanticutt Ave. Margo said a survey was done to certify the lot was at least 5,000 s.f. 
She said she met with Mark Barbadoro, who said Habitat would be applying for a special 
affordable housing permit, and that they needed to have counsel look at an issue they had 
not thought needed looking at. 

Margo said the land was donated to Habitat. She said they plan to move forward 
with this lot assuming they can get approval. She said the house would be one family, 
with two bedrooms and one bath. She said they understood the special permit from the 
planning board would be easier to get than a building permit variance for having less 
than 50 feet of frontage. Jim said there are issues with using a 40b because of the 
neighbors, and that he thought it would be easier to get a variance. Jim said the AHC 
wanted to build a duplex on another Towanticutt lot but would have to get a special 
permit unless they used a town 40b, which is simpler than the state one, but the houses 
on either side would be really upset. Joan suggested calling Andrea Rogers, who has been 
chair of the ZBA. 

Greg said they are looking at modular house for the lot, so they don’t disturb the 
neighborhood for as long as it would take with a stick built house. There was discussion 
of various modular companies. Joan said there are special requirements for 
Massachusetts. Margo said Habitat has invested their own money in the project so far, 
and that in a month she would have a better idea of when CPA funds would be needed. 
Margaret said Habitat would need to submit a new specific budget and timeline for 
drawdown of funds. In answer to Amy’s question about how the house’s new owner 
would help in the case of a modular, Greg said the new owners can help with 
construction, or in the office, that there are many ways they can contribute hours. Margo 
said the goal is for the new owner to help build the house rather than for them to be given
a home. She said the requirement is for 250 volunteer hours, and that they have not 
chosen anyone for the house yet. After they find out if the lot is buildable, then the rest of 
the process is quickly put into motion. 

Margo said the lot will be permanently affordable by deed restriction, which is 
required if they get an affordable house special permit. Greg said Habitat acts as the bank, 
and if a house is sold later, the former owner gets everything they put into it plus a 
nominal interest. Margo said Martha’s Vineyard Savings Bank does the mortgage process 
for Habitat. Jim said the AHC plans to use them for their project. Margo said the OB house 
is the only one Habitat is doing presently. 

FinCom vote on CPA projects:
Steve read the FinCom vote on each project, sheet attached. Amy said it would be 

helpful if FinCom had a summary of each project, which they could get from the CPC 
minutes. Joan said it’s the first year that FinCom has not invited the CPC to come and talk 
about projects. Amy said FinCom should trust that the CPC has done the work to decide 
which projects qualify, and how much to recommend a project for. Alison questioned how
the FinCom can make decisions with no information. Jim W. said when FinCom first 
started taking a vote on CPA projects, the CPC questioned why they should spend the time
to interview and vet the projects when FinCom was going to vote against it with no 
information. Amy said she didn’t think all the FinCom even understands that CPA money 
is not part of the town budget. 



3

Bo said he thought it should be explained at ATM that FinCom voted without 
knowledge of the projects. Amy said she thought Joan should explain what CPA is about. 
Amy said it’s silly that FinCom is debating what the CPC has worked so hard on all winter. 

Jim W. questioned what role FinCom plays in other towns. Margaret said Stuart 
had said it’s up to the town, and there is no set role. Joan said she thought if FinCom 
doesn’t intend the CPC to present the projects, they should be at the CPC meetings to hear 
about the projects. Amy said she knows some FinCom members are against taxpayers’ 
money paying for affordable housing at all, but said the CPA was started in order to help 
with community housing.

There was discussion of why the FinCom might have voted against certain 
projects. Margaret said Maura told her that they voted against the lanterns because of the 
high cost (they did not know it was revised to 25 lanterns, and that Friends of Oak Bluffs 
were paying for 2), and the tree inventory because it’s only for the historic district, and 
that they had a lot of questions about the project.

There was discussion of writing FinCom a letter, and of FinCom’s reputation at 
ATM. Joan said she will present the projects if there’s time, but hoped that anyone else 
would speak on them, too. Steve said the CPC used to be able to give a presentation to 
FinCom, well in advance of their vote. Joan said she’d like to see a letter written to 
FinCom, mentioning there was no schedule for their hearings, and that CPC was not 
invited.  She said the CPC should be invited, or asked to give written information. 
Margaret said she could work on a letter. Joan said Bob is not happy with FinCom’s 
process but he doesn’t have a lot to say about it. 

ATM:
There was some discussion of presenting CPA to the voters and answering 

questions that are raised at ATM. Joan said she could talk about the CPA.

Affordable Housing Conference:
Margaret said she went to the MA Housing Partnership conference on CPA and 

Affordable Housing in Framingham. She said there is presently much more AH money 
being spent on support rather than creation because of how hard it is to get all the pieces 
of an AH project together. She said there was talk of the importance of a paid housing 
specialist for making AH happen. 

Tisbury CPC:
Margaret said Tisbury has decided to only fund regional projects if all the towns 

agreed to fund the project. She said the Tisbury CPC took back the grant they had given 
Habitat because there had been no progress after two years. She said Tisbury is giving a 
mandatory CPA application workshop for municipal heads of departments.

Updates:
Joan said she wants to go through the projects and see what is happening with 

funds that are left. At the next meeting Dave Grunden will come and talk about Shellfish 
projects. Joan said she hasn’t heard anything about next year’s projects, but that AH will 
have something soon. 



4

Affordable Housing:
Jim B. said the OB AH Committee is going to do something soon. He said they want 

to do two modular units (a one-bedroom and a two-bedroom) but they have not decided 
on either rentals or home ownership. He said he is not in favor of two or three bedrooms 
because of the impact on school numbers. He said Towanticut is 8,000 s.f. and, with a 
variance, it should allow two units. He said projections are that school numbers will not 
go back down until 2025. He said he’d like to stay with one and two bedroom units at the 
start. He said he opposes rentals because there is no true income to the town because the 
unit doesn’t go on the tax rolls. Joan said people want to start a family and need more 
bedrooms.

Jim B. said they are looking to do modular town houses on the land behind the 
cemetery, units with two or three bedrooms. In response to Joan’s question whether AHC 
would be coming to CPC to funds projects, Jim said they probably would, but not in the 
next year or two. He said there were ideas about a development behind the ice arena 
where there is sewer, but that Gail Barmakian is adamant that the sewer capacity should 
be used for Barnes Road. He said there are three small lots behind the cemetery, and also 
the lot on Towanticut, which will probably be the first one used. He said it would be at 
least a year before they asked for money. Joan said Margaret had said that lots of the 
state’s CPCs form their own opinions about affordable housing, including using CPA 
money to pay someone to further the CPC’s planning. Jim B. said he didn’t know when the 
money from the Southern Woodlands would come through. 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:15 p.m.

The next meeting was scheduled for Monday, May 2 at 7:00 p.m.


